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PROPEmY Of 
fORI VANCE 

ft\SlOR\C~l SO&\EIY 

This Souvenir Booklet of the Borough of West Middletown, Penna. 

Is Presented to 

THE FORT VANCE HISTORICAL SOCIETY 

In Grateful Appreciation for valued services rendered by members 

of the Society during the Observance of the Sesqui-Centennial Anni-

versary of the Borough which was held at West Middletown on July 

5 to 8, 1973 . 

Very sincerely 

The Anniversary Committee 
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WEST MIDDLETOWN SESQUI-CENTENNIAL OBSERVANCE 

July 5 to 8, 1973 

The following pages were compiled for the observance of the 150th 

Anniversary of the Granting of the Charter of Incorporation to the Borough 

of West Middletown on March 27, 1823o 

I~entiGal copies of these pages were \J.Sed as_ nplaques" and were 

placed in front of each and every property in the Borough during the Anni-

versary Observance, this identifying the properties in terms of present 

ownership and of such history as is lmown about each one, and enabling 

persons taking the walking tour of the town during the observance to identi -

fy the various properties. These copies are now presented in this package 

for the use of such persons as wish to keep them as souvenirs of this 

Anniversary. 

Prepared for the Anniversary by A. D. White of Hickory, in 

co-operation with and under the direction of Homer R. Ross of West 

Middletown~ 



\'!'EST iHDt;LE'lOW'N' HOUSE NUMBERS 

SOUTH S IDlt t~ EAB'! TO 'NEST 

Main St . 

J axnes Bueban:.1n ----------... ·-------------............ 119 Ma:l:n tit . 

Bts.aler Ituslt _._ ______ .,._._ .... ...,,. ___ _. _ _._ .. ____ .................. 115 ~a in St. 

Main St. 

Legan Bro.wnlee ........ - .... - ...... - ...... .-.-.. -·-......... -....................... 99 11a.1n b' .. 
Cha~les MtFaddea H$ume -------------------...... 95 Main S·t. 

!I. a :in st. 

Ckemter Buohanan -------------------- ... --......... 87 Mai,n st. 
Joseph YeY1ns __ ................................ _ ...... _ ... ___ ................. _.... 83 M~in St. 

Chriatian Church ~---------- .. --------------- 79 Main st. 

Geor ge vis.lbrewn ------·------·-... ---... ----~--· 75 Maln st. 
El.W<i'0d MeDeu~e.a _______ ,.. ____ _. ______ ..... ______ ..,.._______ 21. Lane Bant Rd. 

Bell H.ottse ----------...... - ......... -~ .. , .. _ ... _.,.._ ........ _______ .. ., 67 Main st. 

Jay Keenan s~. ·-~~-~-~-~~-·~--~~~~~~~~-~--~ 63 Main st . 

Bert S1r~• ~· --- ..... ------,------------------... ---........... 59 Mtdn st. 
:Mrs. Mae :M11ler ...... .,. .... ____ ..,. __ .. .,.. ___ ..; ______ .., __ .,. 55 Main st. 

Joe Kelley Heuae ---~----·------------------ 47 ME~. in st. 

:Mr'·s . John Duri.lle. ----------... ------------.. --... 43 ~a in B't. 

LJle Hatr ... _ .. __ .. ...,. _________ -"'...,. ___________ ....,. __ .,..,..,... 39 Main at. 

l«ll.wt.on L•g Reuse ------------ ... ----·-------- 35 Maj.n st. 
Earl King ............. - ............... - ......... ~ ....................... _ .... ___ ...,.,_... 31 M~<t1a Bt. 

Main st. 
Jeh!l Temple ___ ........ ~ .............................. - ................................... 15 Ma1n st. 

l,i.nis.-er HG'tel ·---............. - ...... --~ ..... ----· ........ -.................. ll M.a1n Qt ,.:r . • 

William Hlaston ----------... ---------------··- 3 191ain st. 

Mre . Donal F~rrer ---·--------------------- 10 Oolle~e st. 
Janet Be.m.!.s ......................... --~---- .... - ....... __ .., _ _......... 12 College st. 



J'oh.n Baker ------------------------------ 16 The Oaks 

Don:alc Umphrey -------------------------- The O~ka 

Dennis Kelley --------------------------- 18 'Phe Oa.ks 

Leenar• Kelley -------------------------- 29 

James Patterson -------------------------

Mike Yevin: ------------------------~ ---- 21 

Jeaeph Umphrey Jr. ---------------------- 17 

Mrs. Graoe Miller ----------------------- 9 

DaTe Miller ----------------~------------ 7 

e.G. W1111aES --------------------------- 1 

Colle~e 

Colle~e 

Colle~e 

Colle~e 

Colle~e 

Colle~e 

M3_in St. 

Harry Hump'kl.rey -------------------------- 17 r.1ain St. 

Lawrense Heajley ----------------------~- 25 Main St. 

John Ferrell ---------------------------- 29 Main St. 

Mrs. Mary Farrer ------------------------ 33 Main St. 

Lloyd. Clark ----------------------------- 49 M:r.in St. 

Elizabeta Perkins ----------------------- 53 Main St. 

~1ain st. 

Main st. 

Main St. 

St 

st. 

st. 

st. 

st. 

st. 

Leroy Kelley ---------------------------- 59 

McClure Lo~ Heuae ----------------------- 61 

Williaa Crai~ --------------------------- 81 

Mrs. Phoebe Mur«oek --------------------- 85 

Mrs. EY~ Patterson ---------------------- 3 

Emmett Patterson -----------------------­

Frei Anderson --------------------------- 10 

Main st. 

Possum Hollow 

Poamu:m Ha>llow 

Possum Hollow 

Peter Smith ----------------------------- 89 Main st. 

NORTH SID~ * EAST TO WEST 

Ben Miller ------------------------------ 112 Main St 

Y~s. Juanita Farrer --------------------- 96 Main St. 

Crell Plant• 80 Main St 

Ann Malone ------------------------------ 76 Main St. 

Rd. 

Rf1. 

Rd. 



John Kress ---------------------------------­

William Sp0rie -----------------------------~ 

Gailey Ritchey ----------~------------------~ 
Morris Knabenehue 

Dan Hd«~ens Erick House ---------------------

MoKeeYer House ------------------------~----­

Arlin Collins ------------------------------­

Ph.ila Ls.wton ----------=---------------------
A.M.E. cmurea -------------------------------
Roy Dunkle 

Rea Dunkle -~---------------------~----------

----------------------------------
Jay Keen:;m Jr. ~----~-------------~----------

Charles Temple 

Farrer's Store 

Lester Andrews 

George Shanks ------------------------------­

Roy Wilson --------------------------------- -

Jean MeLa~hlin -----------------------------

Li~gett Bros. Tin Shop ----------------------

P&J.tty Brownlee ------------------------------

Mrs. ~~nnie Smiley --------------------------

Mr. Dun~ee ----------------~----------------­

Don Voytek ----------------------------------

First Christian Chureh Builiin~ -------------

Everett Patterson +-----------=--------------
Louis Crai~ ---------------------------------

Geor~e Kelley -------------------------------

Thomas Campbell MeKeeYer'o Stuay - - ----------
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THE UNITED PRESBYTERIAN PARSONAGE 

The Home of the Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Leland M. Miller 

This property is shown on the 1876 map of West Middletown as 

belonging to M. Cowden. Prior to the erection of the pre sent house, 

a log house stood on the rear of the lot . The present house was built 

by Alexander Wells Cunningham, who also was t h e builder of the AM E 

Church building in the Borough. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

19 .. 73 



THE HOME OF JAMES BUCHANAN 

This house was built by George Kelley who was living on 

the property in 1876. Later it was the home of Mr and Mrs 
• 

"Ike" Smith. Mr. Smith was an antiquarian and greatly 

interested in the early history of the local area. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR. STANLEY RUSH 

This was once the property of Thomas McKeever, who 

owned the home and farm of Robert Patton to the re·tr off his 

pr lper ty. He bulilt the original house on the lot as t h e hone 

f c r a widowed daughter who lived here for a numb£ r of ye U'S 

The pl'e sent house was built here after the or igir al t. )USe 

· 1as destrc yed by fire. 

The West M iddlet own Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

19 73 



THE HOME OF' MR AND MRS FRANK BROWNLEE 

Thi 3 house was built for Mr and Mrs Brownlee in 1952 and t.ht'Y 

have oc ..:upied H as their home since that time. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF :MR AND MRS LOGAN BRGWNLEP. 

Tl'.i E-" house was buiJt for M r and Mrs Brown lee in 19 53, and they 

hav~ 'JCCupied it as their home since that time. 

The West M iddlet own Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE OLD CHARLES R. McFADDEN HOUSE 

This house, not now occupied, is the property of Robert 

Hue hanan of Washington. It was, for many years, the home of 

Mr and Mrs Charles R. McFadden. Mr. McFadden w a~ an oil 

operator of the area, and his wife, Mrs. Aura Morris McFh.iden 

was a local historian who contributed a number of artie les to local 

newspapers relative to the early hi story of the Borough and the 

surrounding territory. Charles R. McFadden was a son of the 

1 ocal auctioneer, Campbell M cF adden, who was a colorful person­

ality in the town in his days her e. 

The West M iddlet own Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THY~ HOME OF MR AND MRS PAUL ROBERTS 

'~h s houee ·.v '.iS erected for Mr and Mrs Roberts following 

their n< rr age in '~h ~ late 1940's. Much of the framing 1 umber fo.-:­

t he huuse came from tn e old carriage house which stood near the 

1 ocat ion of the pre sent Fire H ouse in the Borough . 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME 0 F MR AND MRS CHESTER BUCHANAN 

This is an old house, but the date of its erection is not knowh. 

Alexander Law ton is said to have one e lived here, and it was, for 

a time the property of the Liggett Family who 1 ived at the foot of the 

Tho rr.pson Hill Road. Huston MUller lived in the house i'rior to 

1926, when the Bu chanans moved here from Rea Station. Tlt ey 

have added the kit chen to the house, f illing in the L to the rear. 

One of the earlier residents of the house is known to have conduct/ ­

ed a store on the premises. 

The We~t Mi.ctdletow n Sesqui-Centennial An niver sar y 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR. JOSEPH YEVINS 

This house was built by Mr. Yevins, the present owner 

and occupant. An earlier house which stood here was, in 1876, 

the home of James Nelson. Robert Nelson, son of James, had 

a public t ransp ortati on business which operated out of West 

Middletown. It was known as the "Hack" which made three 

round trips weekly to Washington, hauling passengers and the 

United States mail. Also, after the building of the ''Wabash" 

Railroad, for a number of years, Mr . Nelson's vehicles met 

the trains at West M iddlet own stat ion two miles to the north. 

The West Mi~dletow n Sesqui-Centennial Anniver sary 

1973 



The scenes of the early religious activities of Alexander 

Campbell having been in this area, the Christ ian Church has, for 

many years been identified with the life of the people of West 

Middletown. Under the direction of the Campbell s and the 

McKee vers, services were held in the town as early as 18 30. 

A church organization, however, was not effected unti11837, 

and during the first 10 or 11 years of its life, the congreg::ttion · 

met fo r wor ship in t he schoo 1-house, in th e building now 

occupied by Mr. Roy Wilson, or in the homes of members. 

In 1848, the first church building was erected, built of 

brick and located on the north side of the street about 1/4 mile . 
west of this point. The building, used later as a garage and 

s torage building is still standing. 

The present building here, used by the congregation 

since 1861, was built by the Methodist Episcopal congregation 

and used by them until their dis-organization and then was 

taken over by the Disciples. The church is presently being servfd 

as minister by Mr. Larry Brown of Bethany College. 

The building will be open to visitors each day during this 

anniversary celebration. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR AND MRS GEORGE WALBh0WN 

This is sometimes referred to as the "Half-House" due to the ;: 1of p~ttern on 

the building. In 1856, a Mrs. Wilson owned this property, and others who lived. here 

included Billy Allison, a cooper, and his sister, Peggy, Dr. Er:;~stus Be11-;.:s ~ the Rev. 

Mr. Downey and David Craig Ross and his wife, Mary McGugin Ross. 

On the lot adjoining, now vacant once stood the house where the Rev. Charles 

Avery Holmes, noted Methodist minister, was born. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 



THE HOME OF MR ;\_ND MRS ELWOOD McOOUGAN 

This house was built by the {.resent owners who have lived in it ever 

since its erection , just a few years ago. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

19 73 



THE OLD BELL HOUSE 

(the property of M r and Mrs Robert Sweger) 

On the 1861 and' 18 76 maps of West Middletown, this is 

shown as the property of the Bell Family. It was in this 

old building, just recently torn down, that James Bt:ll · 

a copper- and tin-smith manufactured the oil bur nint~ 

lantern invented by Andrew Ralston of Hopewell Towr.sh:u. 

Mr Ralston also invented the threshing machine, which wa& 

manufactured in #est Middletown in the McClure Machine 

Shops located about 1/4 mile west of this point. An other 

invent ion of M r Ralston was a combination sheep -trough 

and hay rack. For this farm accessory, Mr. Ralston sold 

the _plans and the farmers could have thetrough made to their 

order. 

Our ing the years it stood here, the old building also housed a 

general store, and the Bell Telephone Company's switch-board 

was :at one time located in the building. Lucinda Brown, a 

black woman lived here a number of years ago. The house h':t.d 

been vacant for a number of years before being di 5-ma ... ~1ed 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial An niversu y 

1973 



THE HOME OF JAY KEENAN, Sr. 

The original house on this lot was a log cabin which stood 

to the rear of the present house. This house was built by James We: tlake 

who wa~ a native ot Ohio, having been born on Capitan Creek in 1817, 

a 1.on >f B,;nja,nir ar.d Elizabeth Qu~llan Westlake, his father having 

rae l :. Wf n-·.mJv n ::iver-man on the Ohio River in his day. 

In 18 j6, Lccording to the map of the Borough of that date, 

r.IV.i~3 F J.gfn .s 3hown as the owner of the property. This may have 

ber.n Ann Fagen, whose death, however, occured in 1852, and the 

property may have still been listed in her name. In 18tH, a Mrs. 

Wilson is shown as the owner, and in 1876, J. Patterson. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME 0 F MR. BERT SIMS 

In this house once lived Conrad Hillegas, a brother- in-law 

of Andrew Fessler. Thea e men were both tomb-stone cutters 

and they made many of the markers in the early graveyards of this 

area. .~r. Hillegas could neither read nor write, but he could 

f clJ .JW a pattern, and made his inscriptions in this way. 

In more recent years, this was the home of Mrs. Eudora 

Rush Ray and her daughters when they lived in West M iddlet own. 

The West M iddlet own Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF MRS MAE B MILLER 

This house was built by James McClure who had his home 

and"' store in the house. The next owners were John and Sarah Logan 

Brown lee, who se daughter, Jennie Brownlee was the wife of Dr. James 

N BE. mi.,. Dr. Bemis and his family lived here and he was assoi~iated 

in practic ~ with his brother, Dr. David H Bemis who !ivtd across the 

street. 
Dr. James N Bemis was very active in combatinJ:, tht. small­

pox epidemic which raged in the construction camps when t:,e W '-!bash 

railroad was being built in the early years of this century. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial )nniversary 

1973 



THE JOE KELLEY HOUSE 

The old br~ouse which stood here and which w. c:; to 1 ' down 

about a year ago was once occupied by one of the McKee vt." m<t 1 who 

conducted a meat business here and who also hauled m .... at to Ba lti:­

more for sale there. He found it a profitable business until the 

building of the B. and 0 . Railroad, and he found that he could not 

compete with its rates, so h:e had to discontinue hifs trips there. 

The old first Christian Church building which once stood on 

the Ira Lawton lot across the street was located on this lot for a 

time before being moved to Bethany . 

John ("Catamount") Kelley, father of the pre sent owner of 

this lot furnished valuable clues to the detectives who solved the 

Ferguson Murder Case in 1904. 

It is reported that a man died of carbon-monoxide poisoning 

while cleaning out a dug we 11 on this property. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial An tiversar y 

1973 



THE HOME 0 F MR. S JOHN DURILLA 

This is tl;l e oldest brick house in West M iddlet own, 

having been built '.n 1798 accor d\ng to Tax Assessment 

r~cord s of Hopewell Towns hip. After standing for less 

t ban twenty years' it wa:3 declared un-safe for human 

habitat ion in 18 17, but it is still standing and has been 

· us•ad as a r~sidenc e for most of its existence, despite 

this early edict. 

In the lt.l50's and 1860's, it was occupied by T. Lane 

who had a chair factory here. He had a horse-driven lathe 

on which he turnec:l out the par, ts for his chairs. This later 

became the home of the late Milton M Hemphill who served ,_ 

as deputy sheriff of Washington County for a number of years. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF LYLE AND MABEL HAffi 

On the 1856 and 1861 maps of the Bor ough 1 this is shown 

as the property of E, McBride, who is said to have been a son-

iri-law of Col. Daviq Williamson. In 1876, it was the pzoerty 

of J Patterson. A store was once kept in the building, a1'd 

school was held he:re for a time in 1898 when the vi.L~age schod-
.. 

building burned down . 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE LAW TON LOG HOUSE 

'(he age of this old house is not known. In an earl.y 

day it was oe;cupie<;l by John Smiley, a tailor, whose daugb ter 

Emelinf: married William H.oss. 

On the 185fi and 1661 maps of the Borough, this is show.1 

as the prQr_Je rty of Jv1 rs. McFadden, and on the 18 76 map it is 

in t hf: n~.me of J McClure. 

The Prmstorng Family once lived here. 

For many years, it was the property of Mr. Ira Lawton 

who lived just across the street. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 
I 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR AND MRS EARl l JNG 

This house, built in 1890, was for many ye<..rf. tt.e hom': oi 

·Mi.3s Dr1rcas Thompson. After her death, the late Willic.m Thompson 

<.nd hi::; second wife, Margaret Lyle Thompson lived here. 

The Post Office with Mrs. Earl King as Post Master has been 

located in the house following the retirement of Mrs. Laurel Ross 

in 1955. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary · 

1973 



THE HOME OF JOHN W. AND SARAH W. BROWN LEE 

The first house on this property was a log house which stood 

just to the :rear of this present house. 

John Boyd built this brick house in 18 31 and he appears to 

have still been the owner in 18 56. 0 n the 1876 map of West 

Middletown it is shown as belonging to David M. Boy d. f'he 

last of the Boyd Family to occupy the house was B ir d Boyd 

Johnson, wife of Dwight Johns on. When the Johns ons lived 

here, the present side porch was a .room in which a meat-shop 

was conducted, and later this room was used as an i ce-cr earn 

parlor which is still remembered by local residents. For many 

years the family of John Brownlee, Sr. lived here, and it is now 

the home of Mr and Mrs John Brownlee, Jr. 

On the adjoining lot between this property and the Fire Hall 

was the home of Mrs. Ellen Boon. Her husband was a trader in flour 

on th~ rivers for many years. On his 21st trip, he took the Yellow 

Fever and died and is buried at Cincinnati. After that sad event, 

Mrs. Boon brought h er family to W est M iddlet own and her father, 

Galbraith Stewart bought this property for her. At Mrs. Boon's 

death, her body was taken to Cincinnati and buried besiri.e that of 

her husband. 

The West Middletown Sesqu\-Centennial AnniversCl.ry 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR P-ND MRS JOHN TEMPLE 

This was once the home of James Templeton who may have built 

t t1e ho·.1se which must date from around 1850 or earlier. Cn th·~ 1861 

map of the Borough this is shown by the name: M. C:t urch 1r.1 1 n 

18,.. o, Thomas Lane owned the house and he lived here. '1 he l=tal'lt.ey 

:f'amily also lived in the house, and Dr. S. S. Quest, one-time phrsidan 

here had an office in a small building which stood in the sidl' yarci of 

the property. 

The West M iddlet own Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

19 73 



THE OLD LINDSEY HOTEL BUILDING 

This building was erected by James Lindsey and was known 

for many years as the Lindsey Hotel. The old Hotel catered to the 

many types of traffic which moved through West Middletown in its 

hey-day. 

Traveling circh.lses put on their exhibitions on this property, 

'.Lild provision was made on the lot to the rear of the hotel for over­

nig'.lt accomodations for the droves of cattle, sheep and hogs which 

were driven through here on the way to the eastern markets. When 

the route for the National Road was being discussed and the possi­

bilties of its passing through West Middletown were being considered, 

Henry Clay and Philip Doddridge once debated the issue at this hotel. 

!'{ow the property of Mr. Harold Scott, the building has been 

vacant for some time. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Cellli:ennial Anniversa";:y 

1973 



THE HOME AND .ANTIQUE SHOP OF WILLIAM HUSTON 

Over the years this building has been known at vo.u-ious times as 

the McNulty Hotel, the Garrett Hotel and, · in more recent years, as the 

France Hocel. According to maps of West Middletown of 1856 and 1861. 

W. W. McNulty was owner and he conducted a hotel here. By 18'76. 

R. M. Garrett appears as owner, and he, too, harl a hotel in the bt:i.d~ng. 

It h·1s been claimed by some that J(} hn W. Garrett, orga11.i.~e1 of th,, 

Balt tmore and Ohio Railroad system was born in this hous~, but tl ai: 

ch.im is now disputed by local historians. 

Before his death in 1929, Mr. John D. France lived here. H~ w.1c;; 

a prominent local Civil Wav veteran having been a member of th? t."~me~.~ 

"Roundhead" lOOth RegiJ;nent P V I during the War. During the bt.Hding 

of the "Wabash" Railroad in 190<3, Mr. Samuel F arguson, a contractor for 

nearby portions of that railroad building, lived at the France Hotel with his 

wife and da\,lghter. After his being murdered at the foot of Seminary Hill 

on September 25, 1903, Mr. Ferguson's body was brought to the Hotel and 

the funeral service conducted by Mr. W. W. Hunter of Hopewell. Township 

was held here. 

The brick addition to toe building at the rear is said to have been 

built by Samuel Urie, member of the prominent family of that name in 

the Buffalo Creek Valley of Hopewell Township. 

When the France Family occupied the premises, the borough 

elections were held in the Hotel. It is now the home and fJlace of 

business of Mr. William Huston who is a dealer in antiques. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniv·arsary 



THE HOME OF MRS DONALD W FARRER 

On this 2 1/2 acre lot once stood a stone house which was 

the property of the Rev. $amuel Taggart, once minister of 

the Grove Un~ted l?resbyterian Church. His daughter, Mrs. 

J. V~rner C~ark later owned Ute property and erected the 

present house in 1903. 

Mr and Mrs David Scott and family lived in an earlier 

frame house which stood here and which was moved across 

the street when this house was built. Others who nave lived 
\ 

here were the William Ritcpey family, the John Mansons, and 

it has been the home of the rarrE;!r Family for the past fifty 

yea,rs. 

The West Miqdletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE liOME OF MISS JANET BEMIS 

This is one of the newer houses in West Middletown, 

having been built about 1925. 

On the next lot to the south once stood the West Middle­

town two-room school! building, used by the Borough until 

it burned down near the end of the school term in May 1941. · 

Tpe West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR AND MRS DENNIS KELLEY 

This house was built in ~945 by Greene Johnson. It has been 

occupied as their home by the Ke Ue ys since tQ.e time of its erectic n. 

Th~ ar~a in which this llome is located was once known as 

"The Oaks" due to the ~arge trees of this type which stood here.· 

It was a favoriate location for the camp-meetings held here by the 

AM E congregation and other religious groups, 

TheW est M iddlet own Sesqui....Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOM~ OF MR AND 1\ffiS DONALD UMPHREY 

Mr and Mrs Umphrey have lived in this mobile home for 

t hf", pr.st ~ wo years. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME, 0 F MR AND MRS JOHN BAKER 

Thi.s l;louse was built by Dennis Linder. It has been the home 

of the Bc>.kers for the past ~leven years. 

The West Middletown SesquirCentennial Anniversary 

19 73 



THE HOME OF MR AND MRS LEONARD KELLEY 

This house was built abo\,lt 50 years ago by the Walker . 

Family who occupied it until a bout 15 years ago when the present 

occupants acquired it. They have lived here ever since. 

The West Middle1;own Sesqui-Cent~nnial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR AND MRS JAMES .f>ATTER.Bei>N 

,.. his mobile home belongs to Mr and Mrs James Patterson, 

.vho h -~.ve occupied it s in<;e it was placed on this lot. Th '-'Y have 

lived here for about a year. Mrs. Patterson is i.1. possessiL'l of 

some early missionary records of the 1 ocal A M E congre g::. ~ion. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF MR. :MIKE YEVINS 

This was the home of Mr and Mrs Yev ins until Mrs. Yevins' death. 

D~e to f 1 healt h, Mr. Yev ins is not living here at th e present time. 

The ho•1se was, for many years, the home of David A. and Flora 

Brown White and th etr family. They w ere the parents of th ~ 1 ate 

. Mrs. Mae Williams and ot Roy White of Washington and Mrs. Jeanette 

White Wt ley of Neville Island. 
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THE HOME OF MR JOSEPH UMPHREY, Jr. 

This house was built by Mr. Joseph Umphrey, Sr. and by 

Mr. John D. France shortly after their return from service in 

the Union Army following the Civil War years. Mr. Umphrey 

and his wife lived here until th~ time of their deaths, and it has 

been the home of Joseph Umphrey, Jr. since that time. 

The vacant house on the a~joini ng lot, to the south of this 

proper ty once also belonged to the Umphrey F amily. 
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TH~ HOME 0 F MRS GRACE M MILLER 

This house has been re-modeled from an earlier building 

which stood here and which was used in early times by the 

congregation of the Nesleyan Methodist Church, and later as 

a Town Hall. 1he property Q.ex;t door to the north was the heme 

of the David R. Miller family, whose son, Howard Miller was 

the husband of Mrs. Grace Miller. 
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THE HOME OF C. G . (Sam) WILLIAMS 

Th is is shown on the 18 56 map of West Middletown as th e 

property rJf David Craig, who had a store here. By 18 60, the 

property had come into possession of Galbraith Stewart who 

remover! several buildings on the lot and erected the present 

brick nouse in 1859-6 0. 

After Mr. Stewart's death, this became the property of 

the family of James T Hemphill, and his daughter, Miss Lucy 

H emph ill occup ied the house until her death. It was next the 

home of Dr. Grosvenor Pearson, a psychiatrist, and following 

him, Edith and Ann Bra den owned the property until 1952 when 

the present owner acquired it. 
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THE HOME OF MR AND MRS HARRY HUMPHREYS 

Squire Buchanan once kept a hotel on this lot, and following his 

dr ath. his wUow sold the property to Hugh Hamilton who built. the 

J rer·;en thou ;e in JB20, adding the L-s haped wing to the rear in 1825. 

Rr sii,en :s in recent years have included Mr and Mrs. Frank 

Fr~ nee, the Morrow Family, Miss Jean McLaughlin, and since Aug.·st 

197~, Mr ar·d Mrs Humphreys and family have lived here. 

Dr. '.Juy Sprowls and Dr. Es ten L Hazlett, former physicians 

both had their offices in the house, which has under-gone numerous 

. re-modelings since it · was first built. 
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THE HOME OF LAWRENCE HEADLEY 

William Vasbinder, an early resident, came to West Middletown when 

there were only 9 or 10 houses in the town. He was a wagon-maker and also 

worked occasionally as a blacksmith and harn-ess-maker. His son, John 

Vasbirrd~r appears to have conducted the shop here during the 1850's and 

1860's and in 1876, he was still owner of the property. John Vasbinder 

married Margaret Slemmons of the family who kept the Slemmons Hotel, 

while T. B. Slemmons married Jane Vasbinder, and a third marriage 

between these two familie$ was that of John Slemmons who married 

Margaret Vasbinder. This last couple lived on a farm in Canton ,Township 

near the hou$e in which Robert Dinsmore was murdered in December 1866. 

The present hous~ on this property was built by FrankS. Brownleee 

wlm> was an under-taker and furniture .dealer here for a number of years. 
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THE HOME OF JOHN L FERRELL 

This house is on the site of a black-smith shop and wagon-maker'~ 

s)lcp ·mcrJ t;onducted here by Thomas Potts. Later, the property was solc:l 

to G~orge Va3binder, who also conducted a black-smith and wagon-maker's 

E'hOt> cat .lif lor::ation. 1t he house, then standing, was a one-story building. 

s+.tll ·.ater, thi$ pro:perty was owned by Daniel Hair, who was also 

a t-!ar.k-smith and wagon-maker and father of Lyle D. Hair who lives half­

way r:own the hill to the east here in the borough. J. D. Scott, who was 

at qr.e time a justice of the peace lived here. 

The property is now the home of Mr. John L Ferrell. 
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THE HOME OF MRS MARY C F .ARRER 

This is an old house which has been frequently re-

modeled and added to. It was listed Ol\ the 1856 map of 

West Middletown as the property of J Noble and on the 

1876 map as that of Mrs. Ac kison. This was, for some 

years, the home of the David R. Miller family, before 

they moved to tQeir later home on College Street. 
\ 

The family of John G. Cunningham moved here when 

their home on the Cunningham farm at the west end of 

town burned down. Mr and Mrs John G. Cunningham 

were the parents of Mrs. Mary Farrer. She and her 

husband, the late David H Farrer and their family have 

lived in this house for a number of years. 
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THE HOME 0 F LLOYD CLARK 

The t·pp er part of this house was the building which once 

housed the Union Grove Schoo 1. l' his school was located near 

the property of the Grove United Presbyterian Church, at the 

eastern end of the Borough. The fr arne building was moved to 

t bis site by Dr. Scott, a dentist, who was the grand fat her of 

the present owner, and who occupied the house as a residence 

and he also had his dental office her e. 

Crumrine's History of Washington C ount}T has this to say 

about the Union Grove Sel)linary, as it was called: 

"A bout the year 1830 this seminary was opened, with James 

Sloan as principal. An anniversary meeting of the Franklin Literary 

Society connected with the Seminary was held on th e 4th of No vemb'- "' 1 

1831. The trustees at that time were: David MeG ugin, David Wherry 

anci·;H\William Lindsey. At an examination held on the 15th of November 

of that year, J. Anderson, William Wall ace and Dr. Al. Hamilton 

were appointed to take charge. On the 22nd of October, 1832, the 

school was opened under the superintende nee Qf the Rev. Charles 

Whee1~r as principal and Mr. George Gordon , a graduate of 

Washington ~ollege, as assist ant, and on April 7, 18 34, Mr. 

George M RJU was serving as principal. The school flourished 

for. some years ~fter this time with varied sue cess, and was 

finally discontinued at a date which is not now known. 
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THE HOME OF MISS ELIZABETH PERi~INS 

Over the years of the history of West Middletown, this property 

ha·.1 had a number of owners and residents. In 1856, the map uf the town 

snows this as the property of George Ramsey. In 1861, it was tht J r,,per ·y 

of the Disciples Church, but just what use that organizdim~ mac~e of U ;s 

not now known. 

In 1876, the heirs of McCaslin are shown as owne"·s, and .t \'U'ious 

times since it has been the home of the Rev. Mr. Simmons, pas,·or d tht 

A M E Church, who doubled also as a barber; a Mr. Bosier also was, for a 

time, a barber here, apd at a later time the Rev. Mr. Blackwell, minister 

of the local Christian Church lived here. 
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THE HOME OF MR AND MRS LEROY KELLEY 

This neat little house has been re-modeled from a two-story 

building which was known in earlier times as the Clutter Hotel. In the 

1850's a family by the name of Fowler owned the property, and in 187C 

it is listed as the property of J. F .. and J. H. Welch. Others who livet\ 

en the property include the Tilton and Grooms families, Mr. White, c: 

bl i.Ck·-snlith, Dr. Holliday, an early practitioner here , and also the 

.i)a1 .gh .!rty ?.ad Nolan families. 

Waen che Daugherty Family lived here, James McElroy, then a 

yo·lnf mar. of the community began calling on a daughter of the Family. 

J~e cont:ived the practice of calling on Wednesday evenings when the 

rJld.er members of the family were attending prayer meeting, his calling 

being somewhat clandestin~, since the Daughertys did not approve of the 

young man. One evening the parents c~me home e~rlier than expected 

3lld young McElroy was still there. He had to make a fast escape, so he 

got outside and jumped off the high side of the back porch. Mrs. Daugherty 

had just made a large kettle of soft soap, and, in jumping off the porch, 

young McElroy landed in the middle of thekett1e of soap. This unpleasant 

experience ended happily, however, since a short tioe later, Miss Daugherty 

beceime Mrs. McElroy, and possibly no more soft-soaping was necessary. 
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THE OLD McCLURE .WG HOUSE 

Th is is believed to be the oldest 1 og house in West M iddlet own. 

When it was being erected, it is said that people came from miles aro \lnd 

to see a t ,.,o -story log house, so this dates it as one of the oldest log 

houses over a wide area. A Mr. James Hardy once conducted a black ... 

f .m.ith st .op on the property, and from 1860 to 1876 and later, the family 

of Rober~ B. McClure made this their home. The machine shop which 

was lo, ated on the adjoining 1 ot to the west was used by Robert B . 

. MeClur J for the manufacture oft he thre~hing :machine, an invention of 

Andr• w Ralston of Hqpewell Township in 1842. 

from the time of beginning this work of manufacture until 1859, 

about 500 of these macnines were produced her e. On June 5, 1859, 

t be disastrous he~ vy frost which vis it ed a wide area of th e country 

forecast the financial ruin of th \s manufacturing venture. In that 

fateful year, Mr. McClure produced and shipped down-river a large 

number of the ma~hines, but they rotted on the wharf at St . Lou is 

since there was no demand for th em. 

In this house were raised the family of Robert McClure, which 

consisted of the two ministers, theRe vs. W. S. and R. E. McClure, 

Dr. J. A. McClure, A. T. McC lure and their sisters, Alice Snodgrass, 

Jennie E. Ralston, Margaret Bigger, Emma McDill and the Misses 

Annie L. and Etta M cC lure. 

This property is now owned by Mr John Roh all . 
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THE HOME OF WILLIAM CRAIG 

Mr .. C l'aig, a retired farmer has been .1. resident of West 

Middletowt since retiring from his farm, whicb lay abt·ut cne mile 

•:vest of .his point. The Cr ajg Family have lived in thh: are1 for 

many years and most of tnem have followed the voc1tion of fa:·ming. 
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THE HOME OF MRS PHOEBE A MURDOCK 

This small house was formerly a frame addition to the brick 

housf in up-to·wn West Middletown which is now the .home of Mr and 

Mrs ~ ~ea Dun'de. It was moved to this point by Jean Kelley when the 

DunkJes re- nodeled their home in J952. The present home of Mr and 

Mrs. Dunkl·~ was, for many years, the home of the family of the late . 

Rev. J Jhn 1 . Brownlee, .long-time pastor of the Mt. Hope United 

Presb 1terian Ch~rch in Independence Township . 

.. \1rs. Murdock, who is an authority on the History of West 

Middletown and th~ S\,lrrounding area, lives here and works on her 

. projects related to local history and the genealogy of many local 

families . 
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THE HOME OF :MRS. EVA PATTERSON 

Mrs. Patterson, one of West Middletown's oldest residents, 

has lived in t~i s house for many years. She is the mot her of 

Everett and Emmett :J;>atterson and of Mrs~ Alice Kelley, all 

1 real "':'esidents, and of Mrs. Phoebe Thomas and Robert Pattersc.:1 

of Vas hington, Penna. 

On the 1876 map of West Middletown, this was shown 

as the property of A. Law renee. 
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THE HOME OF EMMETT AND EDITH PATTERSON 

This home has been re-modeled from the old building of the one -room 

White School, which has stood on this location for ~t least 100 years. 

After the schoo 1 was moved to the newer building 1/ 4 mile down 

the, ro·.td, the buil din~ wa . purchased by William and Agnes Patterson 

who made this their hom~ for the rest of their lives. Then their three 

bachelor sons: Wjlliam ernst, Marion and Elmer Patterson lived and died 

in the rld house. Their niece, Edith Moten has 1 ived here since 1930, 

ar ... her husband, Emmett Patterson smce their marriage. 

In re-modeling the former school house, the Pattersons un­

covered the old black-board which had been papered over many times. 

This blackboard was found to be of pine, rather than the slate boards in 

1 ater school buildings. 
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THE HOME OF :MR. AND :MRS. FRED ANDERSON 

This property in 18 76 was owned by the Rev. John T. Brownl~e, 

who lived m West M iddlet own but was pastor of the M t. Hope tit;itel~ 

Presby+ ;rian Church in lndependence Township. Later, it was ow11~d 

by hif son, John N. ("Jack") Brownlee,~ until his death. Albert KeJ!ey 

nc N Jf Mingo, Ohio once lived in this house. 

The house is located on, or very near the line between West .ki'iddh .. -

t own borough and Hopewell Township. 
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THE H01r£"0F BEN AND EDITH MILLER 

This house is loc;ate:l on land which was once a part of the adjoining 

Thompson Farm, having once belonged to James Thompson and his son, John 

L. Thompson. The date of tha erection of this house is not known, but in 1853, 

the Rev. John T. Brownlee and his wife, Martha Jane Ashton went to house­

keeping here, so it is at least 150 years old. 
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THF. HOME OF MRS JUANITA FARRAR 

This house, the only one in West Middletown bcro\.lgh, to be 

shown in Caldwell's 1876 Atlas of Washington County, is lL'Cated ')n 

property owned in the 1850's and 1860's by James Christy. In l8'i'6 

it was the home of James Armour and the house is known to be wdl 

over one hundred years old. 

Prior to occupanFY by the Farrars, this was the home. of Mr. 

and Mrs. Calvin Philabaum who came to West Middletown from the 

Dutch Fork area. The Philabaums had a son, Elzie, who married 

Leila McCabe, and two daughters. 
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THE HOME OF CRELL AND MARY ANN PLANTS 

This house, when first built, was used for a pool r0om, and 

la~er a service station was located her e. Rea Dunkle made the 

building over into a dwelling- house and he 1 ived here for a time, 

being followed in residence by the Ben Miller family, Mr. and 

Mrs. Stanley Wheeler, and Mr and Mrs Plants who have done further 

re-modeling are the present owners and occupants. 
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THE HOME OF MISS ANN MALONE 

The origin1.l part of this house was built by Mr. Archibald Campbell, 

a brother of Bishup Alexander Campbell of the Christian Church and the 

founder of Bethany College. Mr. Archibald Campbell was prominent 

- locally in the affairs of the Christian Church., having served as one of 

the ministers of the local congregation in the earlier years of its exist-

ence. 

For many years, this property was owned by the Lindsey Family, 

in the 1850's and 1860's by John Lindsey and in 1876 by his heirs. fu and 

about the year 1915, the family of Mr. and Mrs. Elliott Scott lived here 

and in 1970, this was the home of Mr and Mrs Gary Rush. 



THE HOME OF JOliN AND ANNE KRESS 

This house was built many years ago by Hor ace Burns. 

Among those who have lived in it prior tot he present 

occupants have been: W. A. Ross, Howard F. Brownlee 

Homer Dunkle, the John Davis family, Lau r ell Ross, Hon. ~r 

and Mary Ross, 2.nd Ben and Edith Miller. 
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THE HOME 0 F MR AND MRS WILLI AM SPOERl 

This house was built in 1947 by Homer and Mary Ross who 

1 ived in it until they moved up- town in August 19 72. The Spo~r h: 

came here from Tennessee at about the same tim e. 
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. THE HOME OF GAILEY AND ELLEN RITCHEY 

This is a log house, dating to around 1800, It has been 

frequently re-modeled, tne present porch to the east having once 

be~n an "addeP." room/. Some of the early owners and possibly 

residents were: 

In 1876 

1861 

1876 

J Asby 

Thomas McKeever 

J. Q. A. Boyd 

In 1880, David Boyd conveyed the property to Elizabeth 

Boyd, and in 1919, Daniel Hair, the black-smith , conveyed it to 

William France, who, in 1922 deeded the property to William 

Ritchey/. The :Ritchey Family have been in possession of the 

p.roperty sl,nce that time. 
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THE HOME OF MORRIS AND BLANCHE KNABENSHUE 

This large frame house was built by George B ushfield. for 

many years it was the home of Dr. Erastus Bemis, a native of 

Brattleboro, Vermont who came to Buffalo Village follow lng 

his marriage t~ Ruth McCullough in 18 44. About 1850, the Bemis 

F~.mily moved to West Middletown, and this house was their home 

unti 1 Dr. Bemis' d.eath in 1866, ·after which his widow occupied 

the house until her death. They were the parents of Drs. James 

N and David H. Bemis, who followed their fat her in the medical 

profession here. ivli ss Janet Bemis and Mrs. Sarah B. Farrer 

of West Middletown are daughters of Dr. James N. and Jennie 

Brown lee Bemis. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE DAN HODGENS BRICK HOUSE 

This is one of the many brick houses of its type in West 

Middletown. It was for many years the home and office of Dr. 

Alexander H amilton, and 1 ater it was the home of his widow 

f or many years . 

In more recent years, Dan Hodgens, a harness-maker 

had his shop here, and, for a time, the Past Office was located 

in the house. Miss Linnie Hodgens, an artist of note and 

once instructor in art at Westminster College, was a daughter 

of Dan Hodgens and she was raised in this house. 

The nou se has been vacant for a number of years. It is now 

the property of M r and Mr~ Ear 1 King. 
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THE OLD McKEEVER HOUSE 

This house was built prior to the Civil War years, since it 

figured prominently in events of that period. It was bui~t by Thomas 

McKeever, a Justice of the Peace, Associate County Judge, noted 

abolitionist, and a director of the "Under-ground Railroad." 

At different times in its long history, this house has been 

used as a store building and a hat factory, and it once housed, also, 

the West Middletown Post Office. Anumber of years ago, a large room 

in the house was fitted up for use as a meeting room for the "Community 

Club of West Middletown". 

The house was the local station of tne "Under-ground Railroad" 

and the basement was used for hiding run-away slaves. Also, in the 

basement is a secret room into which the fugitives CO'\lld be put for 

gre .. ,.ter secnrity ;.· 

J. J. George and John Ferrell both kept store in the house, and 

Tom MJrsh had a store and kept the Post Office llere. 

This house is now the property of Mr and Mrs Earl King. 
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'THE HOME OF ARLIN B. COLLINS 

This brick house was built before 1837, probably by Andrew 

F ~ssler, the tomb-stone cutter, who operated his shop here prior to 

t!te year 1850. In the 1850's and 1860's, David M. Boyd owned and 

occupied the property. In 1853, he was .appointed Post Master and 

he held the office for eight years, at the same time engaging in the 

mercantile business here. He was also justice of the peace for nearly 

twenty years while occupying this property. 

A man by the name of Hill once conducted a store here, and 

John Linton at one time had a (in-shop on the premises. Marshall Short 

also had a tin-shop here in the early years of this building. 

By the year 1876, J. V 1 Rea wa,s owner of the property and 

his son, Dr. Alexander M. Rea live~ here and had his doctor /s office 

in the 1.0us~. Followi~g Dr. :Rea's death, the property pas~ed to his 

daughte.c, Mr~::. Del Ross, and she and her husband occupied the home. 

From November 19~4 until Novemqer 1955, Mrs. Ross served as Post 

Master for the borough and the Post Office was located here. 
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THE HOME OF MISS PHILA LAWTON 

(formerly the home of her parents, Mr and Mrs Ira Lawton) 

This house was erected by George McFadden and he is listed as the 

owner on the 1856, 1861 and 18 76 maps of the Borough. While living 

here, Mr. McFadden bought the old Christian Church, first erected 

in the Brush Run area, and he re-built it on the lot beside this house, 

where the present shop stands. He used that building for his shop and 

also conducted the Post Office in it. The older building was dismantled 

by Mr. Ira Lawton who built the present shop for his own use. 
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THE A. M. E. CHURCH BUILDING 

This church was erected in about the year 1860 by the We3leye:..'l 

Methodist Congregation which was then in existence in the Borough. Ti,eL" 

first church building was on the property where Mrs. Grace Miller now 

lives. Friction in the congregation over the issues of the day caused a 

split in the membership and the dissenting faction built the present Christian 

Church building. In about the year 1860, the two factions re-united and 

built this church. At about the same time, the Campbellites (Christian 

Church) moved from their first church building, l/4 mile west of this 

point~ to their present church home, just to the east of this location and 

on the other side of the street. 

Before the church building was located here, one of the nur~err.Jus 

black-smith shops of the borough was located here, with J. w. r_;m~th ? . .:3 

proprietor. This was just priOr to the years of the Civil War. 

The African Methodist EI>isc.opal Congregation who no,, W'Jrst.ip 

here, in. the early days of its ·~xi:;tence, met in the old Doddridge CJ:lap~1 

which was located on the prE!Sent Fa:'.coni Farm about three miles WLS'- of 

town. When the Wesleyan Methodist eon g[l'egation disbanded, the AM E 

congregation moved into town 1nd has c•c.cupied this building ever since. 
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THE HOME OF ROY DUNKLE 

(formerly the home of his parents, Mr and Mrs Matthew Dunkle) 

This property was known during the 1850's as the Slemmons Hotel, 

then conducted by T. B. Slemmons, whose wife was Jane Vasbinder of 

the family of that name in the Borough. Mr. Slemmons conducted the 

Post Office in the building from 1845 to 1849. The property is shown 

as belonging to Mr. Slemmons on the 1856 map of West Middletown, but 

after 1860 it appears to have passed into other hands. On the 1876 map, 

the name on this property is J. HemphilL Mr and Mrs Charles Bromley, 

later residents of Hickory, once lived in this house. 
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THE HOME OF REA AND RUTH DUNKLE 

One of the early occupants of this property was Andrew 

Fessler, the tomb-stone cutter. Examples of his work can be seen 

on grave-markers in a number of the graveyards in the surrounding 

area. Following Mr. Fessler, the Rev. Samuel Taggart, for fifty 

years pastor of the Grove United Presbyterian Church lived here, 

and he was followed in residence here by the Rev. John T. Brownlee, 

who served for so many years as pastor of the Mt. Hope United 

Presbyte\·ian Church in Independence Township. The last of the 

Brownlee Family to live here was John Newton ("Jack") Brownlee, 

who often was referred to as "the best-liked maniin West Middletown." 

When Mr and Mrs Dunkle moved here in 1951, they re­

modeled the house and removed a lean-to kitchen, and this part of 

the house was moved by Jean Kelley and erected as a house at the 

west end of town. This house is now the home of Mrs. Phoebe Murdock. 

On the 1856 map of West Middletown, the space between 

this house and the house next door (Homer Ross's house) was occupied 

by a building which appears Lto have been the prop,~rty of a 1 tlr and 

M::s Tivaine. Others who lived in the present Dunkle hot.se wer J 

Charles Runyon, a plasterer and Robert McCormi<:k. 
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THE HOME OF DAVID L. ROSS 

And OF HOMER AND MARY ROSS and FAMILY 

This house is located on property owned during tbe mid years of the 
Nineteenth Century by John Sampson who had a cabinter maker's and undertaker's 
establishment here. His wife was Sallie McCauley, daughter of George McCauley. 
She was a coat- and pants-maker and worked at her trade at Wellsburg, w. va. 

There are in West Middletown several pieces of furniture which came 
from the cabinet-maker's shop of John Sampson. A table used for many years by 
Grove Church for the communion table was one of these pieces. 

Caroline Sampson, daughter of John and Sallie, married Samuel Marks 
from Wellsburg, and they lived in this house, Mr. Marks probably taking over the 
business from the Sampsons. The shop used by these men stood adjacent to this house, 
and it was a frame building. 

Later, a Dr. Hubert used this house for his home and office. As can 
be seen in the front of the house, this is one of thirteen houses in the borough which 
have two front doors. At a time when a part of these houses was used for business 
purposes, one door led into the living quarters, and the other into the business s 
establishment, or office. 

J;>rior to the occupancy of this house by Mr and Mrs Homer Ross, 
Mr. William Ross and daughter, Tamara, lived here with Mr. Ross's parents. 
Mr. David Laurel Ross is still the senior resident here. 
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THE HOME OF JAY, Jr. AND LELA KEENAN 

This old house is built of logs, and when these were un-covered 

in a recent re-modeling, the logs were found to be 14 inches in dUnn­

eter. Built at a date not now known, it stands on the site of the home 

of Thomas Lane, an early resident, whoc ,.eonducted a live~y stable 

at the rear of the premises. Maps of the Borough dated 185o, 1861 

and 187• show the property to have been in Mr. Lane's name. Ed. 

Lane, a member of Col. Theodore Roosevelt's Rough Riders was a 

descendant of Mr. Thomas Lane . 

... \.frs. Florence Bushfield once conducted the Post Office in this 

'-'ld h<..us~..~, and here lived, also, John and Sarah Dodds with their 

,~hilcL·en: Thomas, James, John, William, Margaret, Mary and Agnes . 

.\'Ir. l)oJds ;vas a flat-boat river-man who worked on the Ohio and 

l\1ib<;JiSb;ppi Rivers. He is said to have walked back to his home 

here from New Orleans twenty-three times. 
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THE HOME OF MR. and MRS. CHARLES B. TEMPLE 

This spacious residence, in the hey-day of West Middletown, was 

known as the Odenbaugh HoteL On the 1856 abd 1861 maps of the Borough, 

this is shown as the property of Thomas Jefferson Odenbaugh, who was 

an active member of the Abolitiopist Party, and who served as the second 

Post Master of the Borough, with the Post Office most probably in this 

building/ On the 1876 map,, Mrs. Susan Odenbaugh is shown as own-err. 

She was one of six daughters of Mr and Mrs David Craig, Mr. Craig 

having been considered the second settler in West Middletown prior to 

1802. 

Since modern means of travel have made obsolete the need for the 

hotels in the small country towns, this property has been used as a private 

residence for many years. In the annex to the building to the west was 

the location of the West Middletown Post Office when Miss Lou Coulter 

served as Post Master of the Borough. 
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TP.E OLD FARRER HOME AND STORE 

James McFadden erected these buildings, and on the 1861 map of 

the Borough, they are shown as the T M M cF adden Home and Store. 

On the 1876 map, J F and J H Welch are shown as owners, and about 

the turn of the Century, the store came into the possession of the 

Leech Family. 

About 1907, Mr and Mrs Andrew C. Farrer moved from a farm in 

Cross Creek Township to this house, and Mr. Farrer took over the · 

operation of the store. The store was then conducted by the Farrer 

Family u nti 1 1967 , Mr. David H F arr er being the last of the family 

to own and operate it . 

Of the :amily of the 1 ate M r and Mrs A C Farrer, which consisted 

of sons: r.Je:t oy, Israel Bebout, MeDon ald and D..;a.vid Homer, and one 

d~<.ughte1 , M ary F arrer Sprowls , only one son, Mr. I B F arr er of · · 

u't'e enville, Penna. is now living. Mrs. David H. (Mary C.) Farrer 

a;.Jd Mrs .. Lonald (Sarah B.) Farrer are now living in the Borough. 
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THE HOME OF MR AND MRS LESTER ANDRE,VS 

This house was built by James Thompson, whose first \·rife 

was.\tane, daughter of David Craig. The property appears to 

have remained in the Thompson family until after the death of 

R. Boley Thompson, son of James. 

The house was built in two sections, apparently identical 

in construction, except that the eastern section has stone header s 

over the windows, while those in the western section are woo den, 

with identic a1 carvings . 

Some years ago, Mr and Mrs George F. Boles lived in the 

house, and just preceding .the present residents were Mr and Mrs 

John Brownlee. 

The West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE HOME OF GEORGE AND NELLIE SHAN~ 

This long brick house was built by Thomas '1\f.cCall. presumably 

around the 1840's. Mr. McCall was an early resident of the ~rea and he 

owned a large tract of land south-west of West Middletown, where he 

was in the sheep and wool-growing business for a number of years. He 

served also, for a time , in the State Legislature of Pennsylvania. 

Mr and Mrs William Richmond lived in this house in the early 

years of the present century, and Mrs. Richmond served as Post Master 

from 1909 to 1920. 

The house is at present the home of Mr and Mrs George Shanks, 

Mr. Shanks being a native of the Emerald Isle and Mrs Shanks a former 

resident of Avella, where they were in business until their retirement 

several years ago. 

On the 1856, 1861 and 1876 maps of the Borough, this property 

was in the name of the McCall Family. 
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THE HOME OF ROY WILSON 

This double house was built by James Thompson, c:nd since it is in 

two sections, it is possible that the two parts were not built at the same 

time. In an up-stairs room of the higher part of the house, the room 

with the two windows to the right, the early members of the Christian 

Church of West Middletown, prior to 1848, I:teld religious services on 

Sunday, and, during the week, the same room was used as a school-room. 

Mr. Archibald Campbell and Mr. Joseph Naylor were the ministers who 

alternated Sundays in conducting the church services here. Mr. Naylor, 

also served as teacher of the school. 

At on~ time the property was used as a shoe-maker's shop, and 

William (Uncle Billy) Buchanan was the cobbler. His wife was a former 

Miss Pyle and their children were a daughter, Mintie and two sons, Thomas 

and Nilliam. 

On the 1856 map of West Middletown, this is shown as the !JrOp..!:rty 
I 

of Samuel Matthews, and in 1861, Galbraith Stewart is shown as tt e owr.er. 

In 1876, there appear to have been two owners with S. i:fhmnpson Jj£ tJ·.e 

west end and Martin Lowery in the east end. At a 18.ter t tme, the WP.st 

end of the house was shown as the Joseph Lawton home, and the east enr: was 

occupied by Mrs. Mary Farrar Sprowls. At still another time, Mrs. 

Jennie Buchanan Cunnipgham occupied tre house. 

The present owner, Mr. Roy Wilson lives in the east end and Miss 

Jean McLaughlin occupies the west end. 
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THE LIGGETT BROTHERS TIN SHOP 

Thi~ little old building was used for many years as a tin shop 

by Alfred (Al) and Wilfred Liggett, twin brothers who lived with their 

sisters at the foot of Thompson Hill road. These men were of small 

stature and while they worked here they could be seen each morning 

walking to the shop coming UJ> the long hill from their home, but they 

were never seen walking together; one would always walk ahead of the 

other. After the death of Wilfred Liggett, Al continued to work here 
I 

in the shop and throughout the community as long as he was able to 

do so. 
In 1856, this property appears to have been owned by Mrs. 

Cotton and on the 1861 map of the Borough it is shown as a black-smith 

shop. Later James Thompson owned the property and he may have 

erected this building. It is being preserved as one of the lru1dmarks 

of the town. George Morrow is the present owner of the property. 
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THE HOME OF :rATTY BRC\NN LEE 

This house, known in recent years as the Perry L igg3tt 

property, ls showrl on the 1876 ... nap of the Borough as the home 

of P. Miller. It was also, for a number of years the ho •ne of 

Mr. and Mrs. Dav ld A. W hit e and family, long-time residents 

of West Mlddletow n. 

The West Middletown Sesqu. -C entennial Anniver sary 

1973 



THE HOME OF MRS. MlNNIE SMILEY 

B<iil~ <:u:uunct HWO, this log house has been frequently re-~nodeled. 

Dr. l! ~~!'j. C ct"tci'i iJ.J.oved into the house in 1817 and he occupied it ES his 

residence and office for a number of years. The property was in the 
~ 

nauic of the Cotton Family for about one hundred years. In the house at 

one time there was a store, and the West Middletown Post Office has also 

been located in the house. 
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THE HOME OF MR. DUNGEE 

This small home is another of the log houses for which 

West Middletown is noted, so it dates probably before 1800. 

Persons known to have lived here previous to the present 

occupant include: Mr and Mrs Birney Walker and Mr and Mrs 

John Davis. 
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THE HOME OF DON VOYTEK 

(formerly the home of M r and Mrs Kenneth Loughman) 

This is a 1 og house, built probably as early as 18l'O, but it 

is complete! y covered with weather -boar ding. Du 1 ing the lays when 

the National Telephone Company served this area, in the early ye<'.-s 

of this century, the switch-board was located in this house, with Mrs. 

Nolen, and later Mrs George Smith serving as operators. 

At onetime Mrs. Fowler lived in the house, and also it w.'s 

the home of the family of David L White . 

The smaller building on this lot adjoining the old church building 

was used as a wash-house when Mr and Mrs George Smith lived here. 

Mike Friend used to live in that building and he had a loom used for 

weaving clot h. The building has recently been moved back from the 

street and is being made into a shop. 
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THE FffiST CHRISTIAN CHURCH BUILDIING 

The congregation of the Christ ian Church of West Middll'town 

dates to about 1830 when members of the "C ampbellite" group began 

holding meetings for public worship, meeting in a school building in 

the east end of town, in the homes of members, and for a time, in 

t hr~ house now owned py Mr. Roy Wilson. The formal organization of 

t bcl r,ongr egation was effected in 18 37, at a meeting held at Pleasant 

Hill Semi nary. 

In 18 48, this brick buUdi ng was erected as the first church 

owned by the group. They worshipped here regularly until 18 61, when 

.. tney sold this building and acquired their present building 1/2 mile 

east of th is point. 

On the 1861 map of tn e Bor ough, this property is shown as 

a "Baptist" Church, but this is probably a mis-nomer. On the 1876 

1l}ap it is designated "A M E" Church, and that congregation may have 

worshipped here before acquiring their present church home. 

In recent years, the property has been used for commercial 

purposes. For several years, Mr. George Smith had a garage here, 

and now it is used for storage purposes by the present owner, Mr. 

Peter Smith. 
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THE HOME OF MR. EVERETT PATTERSON 

This is an all-frame house, but the date of .its erection is 

not known. It has been the home of the Patter son Family for the 
I 

past forty years, and Mr. Patterson and his daughter are the 

present occupants. 
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THE HOME OF MR .AND MRS LOUIS CRAIG 

This house was originally a part of the hotel building where 

Daniel McGugin kept a hotel during the early days of the town. Mr. 

McGugin was a native of Mt. Pleasant Township and a member of 

the f~mil.y of that name who were the first settlers in that Township. 

This house waf, moved to this point about 1860 from the property now 

owned by Sam Williams. In 1861, the property was occupied by N. 

Clouse, who had a blacksmith shop here, . and in 1876, J. Hare (Hair) . 

is indicated as the owner on the map of the Borough of that year. 
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THE HOME OF MR. AND MRS. GEORGE ("Mac'!) KEL~;EY 

This house was built many years ago by theRe'/. George Webster, 

grandfather of Mr. Kelley, and a veteran of the Civil War. :rv. r. 

Webster 1 ived and r.ied in the house, and it has a1 ways been occupied 

by some of his de·3ce ndants. 

Th·e West Middletown Sesqui-Centennial Anniversary 

1973 



THE STUDY OF THOMAS CAMPBELL McKEEVER 

This building represents a, restoration of the study erected a~. P 1easant 
~ ~· 

Hill Seminary by and for Thomas Campbell McKeever somt' time du.:int; the 

decade of the 18oO's. 

, Mr. McKeever was a grandson of Thomas Campbell, 1. nt.'!Jhew of 

Alexander Campbell, and a son of Matthew and Jane Campbell M ~K t.ever. 

' His parents were the founders of Pleasant Hill Seminary about 1845. The 

young Mr. McKeever became first a teacher in the Seminary, and later he 

assumed the principal-ship when his mother was unable to continue further 

in that capacity. 

This present building purports to be an almost exact replica of the 

original study. The older building, patterened to some extent after the study 

of Alexander Campbell at Bethany, was moved to West Middletown following 

the close of the Seminary. It stood on various locations and was used for 

many different purposes while 1 ocated in the Borough. It was torn down in 

the 1930's after becoming un-fit for continued use. 

The building, erected under the sponsorship of themar.ough Council, 

was built by Rea Dunkle and Homer Denning with the help of much volunteer 

labor from m~·ny local citizens. It will be used in the years ahead to house 

histdri.cKL and g. me alogical records and reference works, and it is hoped 

that a circulatin(~ library might also be established here. 
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